Uldaho Law

Digital Commons @ Uldaho Law

Not Reported

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

3-26-2019

State v. Castaneda Appellant's Brief Dckt. 46316

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Nature of the Case

Maria Castaneda appeals from the district court’s order revoking her probation and executing her sentence of ten years, with two years fixed, entered originally upon her guilty plea to injury to children. Ms. Castaneda asserts the district court abused its discretion by failing to reduce the indeterminate portion of her sentence upon revoking probation.

Statement of the Facts & Course of Proceedings

In 2010, while intoxicated and trying to flee from her abusive ex-boyfriend, Ms. Castaneda had her 13 year old daughter drive her and Ms. Castaneda's other children away from the abusive environment. (PSI, pp.12-13.)¹ A first time driver, Ms. Castaneda's daughter had difficulty maintaining her lane and an officer eventually pulled them over, and subsequently arrested Ms. Castaneda. *Id.*

The State filed a criminal complaint charging Ms. Castaneda with injury to children and with obstructing an officer. (R., pp.25-26.) She waived her right to a preliminary hearing, was bound over into the district court, and an information was filed charging her with the above crimes. (R., pp.37-40.) Ms. Castaneda pled guilty to injury to children; in exchange, the State agreed to dismiss the obstructing charge, and agreed to recommend Ms. Castaneda be placed on probation with an underlying sentence of ten years, with two years fixed. (R., pp.85-101.) At sentencing, the district court followed the State's recommendation and placed Ms. Castaneda on probation for a period of ten years, with an underlying sentence of ten years, with two years fixed. (R., pp.113-21.)

Ms. Castaneda twice admitted to violating the terms of her probation by absconding, and the district court continued her on probation each time. (R., pp.128-47, 154-70.) Ms. Castaneda admitted to violating her probation by absconding a third time, and the district court executed her sentence, but retained jurisdiction. (R., pp.171-89.) After successfully completing her rider, Ms. Castaneda was again placed on probation. (R, pp.192-99.) However, Ms. Castaneda again admitted to violating the terms of her probation, this time by changing residences without

¹ Citations to the Presentence Investigation Report and its attached documents will include the designation "PSI" and the page numbers associated with the 54-page electronic file containing those documents.

permission, failing to keep in contact with her probation officer, leaving Idaho without permission, quitting her job without permission, failing to complete aftercare, and by again absconding supervision. (R., pp.200-10; Tr. 6/26/18.) During the disposition hearing, counsel for Ms. Castaneda asked the district court either to again retain jurisdiction, or alternatively, to reduce the indeterminate portion of her sentence from eight years, to four years. (R., p.211; Tr. 6/29/18, p.7, L.13 – p.8, L.20.) The district court declined to do either and instead revoked Ms. Castaneda’s probation and executed her underlying sentence. (R., pp.211-14; Tr. 6/29/18, p.12, L.21 – p.13, L.8.) Ms. Castaneda filed a timely Notice of Appeal. (R., pp.215-17.)

ISSUE

Did the district court abuse its discretion by failing to reduce the indeterminate portion of Ms. Castaneda’s sentence upon revoking her probation, in light of the mitigating factors that exist in her case?

ARGUMENT

The District Court Abused Its Discretion By Failing To Reduce The Indeterminate Portion Of Ms. Castaneda’s Sentence Upon Revoking Her Probation, In Light Of The Mitigating Factors That Exist In Her Case

Where a probationer admits to willfully violating one or more of the terms of her probation, the decision as to the appropriate disposition is left to the sound discretion of the district court. Ms. Castaneda asserts that the district court abused its discretion by failing to reduce the indeterminate portion of her sentence from eight years, to four years, as her counsel requested during the disposition hearing.

Ms. Castaneda’s criminal actions stem from her addiction to alcohol and controlled substances. She began drinking when she was just 13 years old, and has at various times used marijuana, cocaine, and methamphetamine. (PSI, pp.19-20.) Her criminal actions in this case

were a direct result of her alcohol use. (PSI, pp.12-13.) During her disposition hearing, Ms. Castaneda acknowledged to the district court that she has struggled with her alcoholism and addictions, recognizing that she would get too confident believing she was cured, when in reality her drinking has led to cirrhosis and pancreatitis. (Tr. 6/29/18, p.9, Ls.4-15.) Ms. Castaneda also recognizes that being back in jail has helped put her life back into perspective. (Tr. 6/29/18, p.9, Ls.15-24.)

Idaho Courts recognize that substance abuse and a desire for treatment, is a mitigating factor that should counsel a sentencing court to impose a more lenient sentence. *See State v. Nice*, 103 Idaho 89 (1982). In light of the mitigating factors that exist in her case, Ms. Castaneda asserts that the district court abused its discretion by failing to reduce the indeterminate portion of her sentence, upon revoking her probation.

CONCLUSION

Ms. Castaneda respectfully requests that this Court reduce the indeterminate portion of her sentence from eight years, to four years, or for whatever other relief this Court finds is appropriate.