Uldaho Law

Digital Commons @ Uldaho Law

Not Reported

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

4-23-2019

State v. Castaneda Respondent's Brief Dckt. 46316

Issue

Has Castaneda failed to establish that the district court abused its discretion by revoking her probation and declining to reduce the indeterminate portion of her underlying sentence?

Castaneda Has Failed To Establish That The District Court Abused Its Sentencing Discretion

Castaneda pled guilty to injury to a child and, on October 26, 2010, the district court imposed a sentence of 10 years, with two years fixed, suspended the sentence, and placed Castaneda on supervised probation for 10 years. (R., pp.114-21.) In January of 2013, the state filed a motion for bench warrant for probation violation alleging that Castaneda had violated the

conditions of her probation by failing to report to her probation officer, absconding supervision, and failing to pay court ordered financial obligations. (R., pp.128-33.) Castaneda admitted to violating the terms of her probation, and the district court continued probation. (R., pp.145-47.)

In May of 2013, the state filed another motion for bench warrant for probation violation alleging that Castaneda had violated the conditions of her probation by failing to report to her probation officer and absconding supervision. (R., pp.154-59.) Castaneda again admitted to violating the terms of her probation, and the district court again continued probation. (R., pp.168-70.)

In February of 2014, the state filed another motion for bench warrant for probation violation alleging that Castaneda had violated the conditions of her probation by failing to report to her probation officer and absconding supervision. (R., pp.171-75.) Castaneda again admitted to violating the terms of her probation, and the district court revoked her probation, executed the underlying sentence, and retained jurisdiction. (R., pp.185-87.) After a period of retained jurisdiction, the district court suspended the sentence and reinstated Castaneda on probation for two years. (R., pp.193-99.)

In June of 2015, the state filed yet another motion for bench warrant for probation violation alleging that Castaneda had once again violated the terms of her probation by changing residences without permission, failing to report to her probation officer, leaving Idaho without permission, failing to maintain employment, failing to attend Rider Aftercare, and absconding supervision. (R., pp.200-06.) Castaneda was at large for approximately three years before she was finally brought before the court and admitted to having again violated her probation. (R., pp.207, 210; see also 6/29/18 Tr., p.10, L.24 – p.11, L.5.) At the disposition hearing held on June 29, 2018, the district court revoked Castaneda's probation and executed the underlying

sentence without reduction. (R., pp.212-14.) Castaneda filed a notice of appeal timely from the district court's order revoking probation. (R., pp.215-17.)

Castaneda asserts that the district court abused its discretion by "failing to reduce the indeterminate portion of her sentence upon revoking probation" in light of her substance abuse and desire for treatment. (Appellant's brief, pp.3-4.) Castaneda has failed to establish an abuse of discretion.

Upon revoking a defendant's probation, a court may order the original sentence executed or reduce the sentence as authorized by Idaho Criminal Rule 35. State v. Hanington, 148 Idaho 26, 28, 218 P.3d 5, 7 (Ct. App. 2009) (citations omitted). A court's decision not to reduce a sentence is reviewed for an abuse of discretion subject to the well-established standards governing whether a sentence is excessive. Hanington, 148 Idaho at 28, 218 P.3d at 7. Those standards require an appellant to "establish that, under any reasonable view of the facts, the sentence was excessive considering the objectives of criminal punishment." State v. Stover, 140 Idaho 927, 933, 104 P.3d 969, 975 (2005). A sentence is reasonable if it appears necessary to accomplish the primary objective of protecting society and to achieve any or all of the related goals of deterrence, rehabilitation, or retribution. State v. McIntosh, 160 Idaho 1, 8, 368 P.3d 621, 628 (2016). The reviewing court "will examine the entire record encompassing events before and after the original judgment," *i.e.*, "facts existing when the sentence was imposed as well as events occurring between the original sentencing and the revocation of probation." Hanington, 148 Idaho at 29, 218 P.3d at 8.

On appeal, Castaneda argues that the district court abused its discretion by executing her underlying sentence, without reducing the indeterminate portion, in light of her substance abuse and desire for treatment. (Appellant's brief, p.3-4.) However, Castaneda's abysmal performance

while on probation and failure to rehabilitate while in the community demonstrate that she is not entitled to a reduction of the indeterminate portion of her sentence.

In November of 2008, officers received a report that a vehicle was “all over the road.” (PSI, p.12.¹) When officers pulled the vehicle over they found Castaneda’s 13-year-old daughter in the driver’s seat, her 11-year-old and 10-year-old sons in the backseat, and Castaneda in the front passenger seat. (PSI, p.12.) Castaneda was intoxicated. (PSI, p.12.) During the traffic stop Castaneda was “non-cooperative,” “combative,” and had to be physically forced into handcuffs and into the patrol vehicle. (PSI, p.12.) While in the patrol vehicle, Castaneda hit the window and “kicked out” to keep the door from closing. (PSI, p.12.) At the time of the offense, Castaneda had already amassed seven misdemeanor convictions that included making a false report, possession of marijuana with intent to distribute, driving without privileges, and four counts of DUI. (PSI, pp.13-14)

At the time of sentencing, Castaneda stated, “I will attend and complete a program. I will report to probation. I will follow all rules.” (PSI, p.21.) However, Castaneda has failed to complete any programming while in the community, and has utterly failed to follow the rules by absconding supervision multiple times. Castaneda’s desire for treatment does not outweigh her poor performance or her failure to take advantage of substance abuse treatment while in the community.

At the disposition hearing, the district court articulated its reasons for revoking Castaneda’s probation and executing her sentence without reduction. (6/29/18 Tr., p.10, L.2 – p.13, L.25.) The state submits that Castaneda has failed to establish an abuse of discretion, for

¹ PSI page numbers correspond with the page numbers of the electronic file “Appeal - Confidential Exhibits.pdf.”

reasons more fully set forth in the attached excerpt of the disposition hearing transcript, which the state adopts as its argument on appeal. (Appendix A.)

Conclusion

The state respectfully requests this Court to affirm the district court's order revoking Castaneda's probation and executing her underlying sentence without reduction.